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Section 1: Organization Information 
 
 

Organization Name: Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. (CRA) 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1903 

City: Big Pine Key State: FL Zip: 33043 

Phone #: 305-393-2972 Fax #: N/A 

Website: keyscra.org  

Executive Director: 
Elicia Pintabona 

Email: keyscra@keyscra.org 

Phone #: 305-393-2972 

Contact Person (if different): Email: 

Contact Person Title: Phone #: 

Board President: Chairman: Michael Rogers Email: 
michael.rogers@keybridgetreatment.com 

Organization Mission Statement (150 words or less): 
Founded in 2020 with the core principle of creating foundations, at CRA we pride ourselves on our mission minded approach 
to homelessness assistance. No matter where a client is on their journey, CRA meets them with our core team values of 
compassion, education, understanding, and support. We believe implementing these values creates a strong foundation to 
assisting people out of homelessness, and helping our community understand the needs of this vulnerable population. 

 
 

✓ CORPORATE BYLAWS ARE ATTACHED AS TAB A TO THIS PROPOSAL 

RESPONSE  

✓ 2023-2024 FY BUDGET FOLLOWS (SECTION 2 OF THIS RESPONSE) 

✓ IRS 990 FORM IS ATTACHED AS TAB B TO THIS PROPOSAL RESPONSE 

✓ OPERATIONAL PLAN/PROCEDURE MANUAL IS ATTACHED AS TAB C TO 

THIS PROPOSAL RESPONSE.  JUNE 2023 OPERATIONAL RESULTS ARE 

ATTACHED AS TAB C-1 

 

mailto:keyscra@keyscra.org
mailto:michael.rogers@keybridgetreatment.com


 
 

 

 

Section 2 Proposal Budget: 
Provide a proposed annual budget. The expenses on the template represent an average of 3 

years of actual expenses at JJNC, as an example. If your budget varies significantly from the 

line items indicated on the template, please describe why in an attached narrative. 

The budget you submit should correlate with your answers to the narrative questions 

below. 

 
Response: A Budget Narrative and Worksheet follow.  Prior to adjusting, these expenses 

map closely to actual remuneration for the JJNC facility received from the City for the last 

year.   
 



 
 

 

Budget Proposal of Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. for 

FY 2023-2024 City of Key West Homeless Services 

Contract 

 

This is the proposed budget of Cornerstone Resource Alliance Inc. for the contractor operated 

portion of the City of Key West Homeless Services Program, fiscal year 2023/2024. Cornerstone 

continues to improve operational standards and offer robust supportive services. We continue 

to evolve in order to successfully and succinctly meet the needs of the Key West community 

we serve. In addition to staffing, stocking, and sustaining a 24 -7- 365 day a year low barrier 

shelter facility, we continually provide food, outreach, and case management services to our 

homeless and at-risk Key West citizens. 

 

Operational Snapshot:  

Cornerstone Resource Alliance Inc. employs 20 Monroe County residents that staff the 24/7 

shelter and ancillary Case Management locations. We currently offer Case Management at 

three locations in Key West.  

 

In 2022 Cornerstone served 785 unduplicated clients in our community, 100 of which are 

senior citizens. Additionally, we provided 41,404 bed-nights at the shelter and 4,022 Case 

Management services.  

 

By pursuing COVID grant opportunities in past years, we were able to implement additional 

new programs, such as our rental and utility assistance program which kept 45 families housed, 

many of which had dependent children or teens. We were also able to provide our sheltered 

clients an expanded food program to better meet nutritional needs. COVID funding made up 

for 30% of our operating budget last fiscal year. Although Cornerstone aggressively pursued a 

grant opportunity with HUD to replace the exhausted COVID funding, Monroe County was not 

chosen to receive funds. By successfully pursuing other grants, we have greatly lessened that 

monetary gap left by the exhausted COVID funding.  

 

Cornerstone requests a total of $842,285 to operate the City’s homeless shelter for FY 2023. A 

budget worksheet follows, which illustrates all of the adjustments and changes. The work that 

Cornerstone has done, and continues to do, in our community greatly benefits the City of Key 

West. These advancements would not be possible without the combined, symbiotic nature of 

our contract. Cornerstone thanks the City for all it does to support the mission of Cornerstone 

Resource Alliance Inc. and those facing homelessness and poverty in our community. 



CRA Budget Proposal FY23-24 (Amounts in $) 
 

 

REVENUES  
City of Key West 842285 

 
842285 

 

EXPENSES 

  OPERATIONS 

Audit 6500 

Sanitation & Maintenance 21000 

Insurance, Liability 5200 

Insurance, D&O 1200 

Office Supplies 1500 

Accounting Services 3200 

Phone & Communications 4600 

Rent 6000 

Repair & Replacement Items                                         8000 

Contingency 2500 

 

PERSONNEL 
Salaries, Wages, Taxes 835520 

Insurance, Workers Comp. 27003 

Payroll Service 3000 

Training 1000 

TOTAL EXPENSES 926223 

 

Grants Offset                                                               (83938) 

 

NET OPERATIONS                                                      842285 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 3: Narrative Question 

Responses 
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Section 3 Narrative Questions 
 

Question 1 – Shelter Operations Plan 

Please describe how your organization would manage the John Jones Navigation Center facility and 
operations. Your description should include information on how your organization will: 

 

• Maintain and operate the facility to provide a clean and safe living environment (including 
routine building maintenance, cleaning, safety, etc., as indicated in your proposed budget). 

• Oversee operations ensuring 24-hour coverage through the management of part-time 
employees and volunteers. 

• List on-site Operational Manager and include their qualifications. 
• Maintain data on shelter usage. 
• Draft an operational manual for employees that includes training, discipline, job descriptions, 

authorities and responsibilities of employees, duties and functions of each position. Include 
Emergency Operations such as Hurricane Evacuation, and off-site sheltering. Provide to City for 
review. 

 
Please indicate if your organization is currently operating a homeless shelter or has operated a shelter 
in the past 5 years. If you have experience in shelter operations, please indicate where and for how 
long you have operated shelters. (500 words or less). 

Question 1 Response: 

Maintain and Operate the Facility: CRA will continue to provide the following services to ensure 
the health and safety of JJNC clients. Please note this list is not all-inclusive due to word count 
guidelines. 

✓ Robust checklists for facility maintenance, cleaning and repairs, which are attached under 
Part III, Part C of the Qualifications Proposal of this response. 

✓ Requiring all clients to read, understand and sign a “Shelter Client Behavioral Policy”, which 
formalizes shelter rules, disciplinary actions and expectations for client behavior, included in 
Tab C, Page 2. 

✓ The Shelter’s Director of Operations maintains adequate staffing to ensure the safety of both 
staff and clients to the fullest extent possible. 

✓ Monitoring of 24X7 surveillance cameras to ensure client policies are enforced. 
✓ On request, providing separate sleeping areas for those clients that are transgender or require 

a “quiet” area to ensure adequate sleep for next-day job attendance. 
✓ Order and stock necessary cleaning and operations supplies such as toilet paper, laundry 

detergent, bleach, etc. 
 

Oversee Operations: Weekly work schedules are developed by the Director of Operations and 
distributed to the Shelter Monitors and staff. Sufficient manpower levels and performance are 
monitored at all times across all shifts.   

 

On-site Operational Manager: Richard J. Vanderhoof (Jay), whose resume is included under Tab D, is 
our Director of Operations (Operational Manager) and has performed executive-level oversight at JJNC since 
2021. Reporting directly to Elicia Pintabona, CRA’s Executive Director, he has 20+ years of military/private 
company experience supervising, training and motivating teams in the most challenging and humbling work 
environments.  He meets all qualifications of the job description included in Tab D, Page 3 and has garnered 
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an outstanding level of JJNC client and staff respect and admiration.   
 

Maintaining Shelter Data: As is the current practice, data is entered into the Monroe County 
Continuum of Care’s (CoC) HMIS information system, which provides a baseline for CoC HUD funding.   
Realizing that JJNC is the largest data contributor to this system, we understand the importance of 
data input for outreach, case management and shelter clients.  A specialized report is also provided 
to CRA’s Board of Directors, the June 2023 copy of which is attached as Tab C-1 of this response. 

 

Operational Manual: An operational manual is included as Tab C of this response, which contains 
best practices and “lessons learned” during CRA’s tenure as JJNC’s shelter manager – including 
hurricanes Irma and Ian, along with challenges faced during the unprecedented Covid-19 pandemic.   

 

JJNC specific Experience: Ms. Pintabona, the current Executive Director and President of CRA, has 
11+ years experience; Mr. Vanderhoof, as Director of Operations, has 2+ years.  CRA’s Board of 
Directors have remained with CRA since its initial City contract shelter management award in 2020.  As 
such, both the Board and operations personnel have gained a unique knowledge of the challenges 
remaining to meet their common vision of the continued service improvements needed to reduce local 
homelessness and its’ effects on our Key West community.   

Question 2 – Services to the Homeless 

Part A. Please describe (in 500 words or less) how your organization would provide services to the 
homeless, or those at risk of being homeless, in Monroe County, to connect them with housing, 
employment, and the types of services and supports they need to acquire stable housing. Provide 
details on how you would provide services in the areas of: 

• rapid re-housing and housing search assistance 
• job training or placement 
• medical or psychological counseling 
• facilitation of substance abuse treatment and counseling 
• other support that addresses the complex causes of homelessness 

Question 2, Part A Response: 

As the only no-fee, low barrier shelter in Monroe County,  JJNC is unique in that it is often the “first 
stop” for adult clients 18 years old or older with urgent emergency needs for shelter or services.  Under 
this new contract, CRA will continue providing robust case management and outreach services.  By 
keeping case management functions at the existing three outreach locations and performing intake 
assessments on all new shelter clients, the case management team has an effective window of 
opportunity to work with a broad scope of sheltered and unsheltered clients by providing immediate 
services (including rent and utility assistance to prevent homelessness) or appropriate client redirection to 
other specialized partner agencies to eliminate duplication of services. 

 
Case Management Outreach includes coordinated referrals for: longer term housing/shelter, 
emergency funding sources to prevent homelessness such as rent/utility assistance, mental 
health/domestic abuse referrals and shelter/housing opportunities appropriate for families and those 
with disabilities/relocation and reunification services. This process allows us to leverage case 
management services across multiple agencies. 

 
CRA will remain committed to not charging clients for shelter or case management services, thereby 
further encouraging indigent clients to seek our services by removing cost barriers to obtain these 
services. Client support at JJNC will include, at minimum: AA meetings, a program which supplies 
bicycles, on site healthcare provided by Rural Health Network, Department of Health vaccinations/ 
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disease testing services, maintaining an inventory of donated clothing, and ensuring availability of 
personal care items. 
 
As a board member of the Monroe County CoC, the CRA Executive Director, Ms. Pintabona attends the CoC’s 

monthly meeting, provides a monthly Lower Keys Report, and has deep interactions and relationships 
with the 27 local agencies that are also CoC members.  

 

Part B. If you are currently providing those services to the homeless, please indicate (in 200 words or 
less) how long you have been doing so. Describe how you measure your success in providing those 
services and present any data you have that indicates your success.   

Question 2, Part B Response: 
CRA has been performing services at JJNC Since 2020, under the last City contract.    On a combined basis, 
the Board, Executive Director, and Shelter Director of Operations have over 40+ years experience, 
35 years of which relate directly to JJNC management and client service provisioning.      
 
In 2022, CRA provided JJNC shelter and case management clients the following: 

• 49,756 bednights of shelter, including 709 unduplicated clients.  530 clients exited the shelter. 

• Clothing for 329 clients needed for job searches or new jobs 

• Rent and utility assistance for 72 households and individuals 

• 4,192 outreach and case management services to 801 unduplicated clients 

• 179 bikes for client transportation needs 

CRA will remain committed to data entry into the CoC’s HMIS database. Additional reporting and 

homeless analysis statistics are also available, providing additional insight into shelter and case 

management referrals, accomplishments, and measurable outcomes.  A copy of our 2022 newsletter 

outlining these accomplishments is attached under 0 of this response.   

 
Question 3 – Homeless Prevention 

Part A. Please describe how your organization would provide homelessness prevention services such 
as: 

 
• connecting those at risk of being homeless with rental and utility assistance programs and anti- 

eviction services 
• housing counseling and connection to legal services 
• connecting those at risk with other services needed to maintain stable housing 

 

Question 3, Part A Response:    

CRA’s experienced case managers provide, through coordinated assessment with other local agencies, 
connection to the services mentioned above. CRA also utilizes the VI-SPDAT (Vulnerability Index - 
Service Prioritization Decision Assistance Tool) which is an assessment tool recognized by HUD and 
used nationwide to determine risk and prioritization when providing assistance to homeless and at- risk 
of homeless individuals and families. Both the coordinated assessment and VI-SPDAT are commonly 
used tools for agencies who participate in homeless prevention, assistance, and needs assessment to 
collaborate on care to provide the maximum benefit to clients in need. CRA also works closely with 
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Miami legal services who provide no cost legal assistance to their clients. 

Question 3, Part B Response: 

Part B. If you are currently providing homelessness prevention services, please indicate (in 200 words 
or less) how long you have been doing so. Describe how you measure your success in providing those 
services and present any data you have that indicates your success. 

 
CRA has been providing homelessness prevention services since its’ inception in 2020. Via outreach and 
case management services such as rent/utility assistance, relocation funding for family re-connection, 
housing placement, working closely with the local hospital’s case managers, and other efforts, CRA 
strives to prevent homelessness in its client base.  Success in the areas of homeless prevention and 
assistance will be measured with reports generated by entering our data into the CoC’s HMIS (Client 
Track) software. In 2022 we provided rental assistance to 72 individuals which prevented homelessness 
to their households. 

Question 4 – Community Outreach and Partnerships 

Please describe how your organization provides information to potential clients about your services. 
Describe your community outreach efforts and how you would coordinate services with other agencies 
in Monroe County that serve the homeless or those at risk of being homeless. Do you have formal or 
informal relationships with social service agencies that serve low-income Monroe County residents?  

Question 4 Response: 

Client Outreach: In addition to providing client service information at the JJNC shelter, CRA also 
provides walk-in outreach and case management services at two other locations which are easily 
accessible to the populations we serve. Additionally, we have information cards that are provided to the 
Lower Keys Medical Center hospital, DePoo Behavioral hospital, and Monroe County jail which illustrate 
the services provided by CRA and contact information for our case managers.  

 
Community Outreach and Involvement:  We believe the new shelter will provide a strong opportunity 
to provide additional “reach” to our community, including formation of an open community advocacy 
group and volunteer opportunities such as cooking and serving meals to the clients.  

 
Service Coordination and Relationships: Over the years, CRA and its principals have developed solid, 
long-term relationships with the CoC and its 27 member agencies. Case managers continuously 
interact with these agencies to assist clients and prevent duplication of services. 
 

Question 5 – Working Effectively with a Diverse Population 

Please describe your organization’s capacity to work with people who do not speak English and with 
people from other countries and cultures. What strategies would you use to work most effectively with 
Key West’s highly diverse population? 

Question 5 Response: 

CRA’s staff has extensive experience in relating to clients with diverse languages and cultures, 
guidelines for which are incorporated into CRA’s non-discrimination policy. 
CRA’s continuing goals are to ensure that 50% of their shelter employees are bi-lingual and that at least 
one of the on-site JJNC Shelter Monitors on each shift is bi-lingual. We are also able to utilize google 
translate for more in-depth services if needed at the case management office. In addition to bi-lingual 
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staff, at least one employee is trained annually in DCF’s Deaf and Hard of Hearing (HoH) program, 
which includes a process for obtaining translation services for deaf and HoH clients. CRA also utilizes 
local agencies who work with immigrants and immigration issues for more complicated cases which 
require assistance for the client.  

 
Question 6 – Working Effectively with Those Most at Risk of Becoming 
Homeless 

Please describe your organization’s history in working with populations that are most at risk of 
becoming homeless, including people who are physically or mentally disabled, ex-felons or parolees?  

Question 6 Response: 
 
These at-risk populations require collaboration and experienced intervention. There is often little to 
no notice to prevent homelessness. These cases can provide a critical and immediate threat both to 
facility resources and to the client’s health and safety. CRA can provide both collaboration and 
implementation at an exceptional level. 
 
Case Management Outreach includes coordinated referrals for: longer term housing/shelter, 
relocation and reunification services, emergency hotel/motel vouchers, emergency funding sources to 
prevent homelessness such as rent/utility assistance, mental health/domestic abuse referrals and 
shelter/housing opportunities appropriate for families and those with disabilities. We also work closely 
with the Sheriff’s Department to assist those newly released felons without housing plans.  Additionally, we 
work closely with the Lower Keys Medical Center hospital and DePoo Behavioral hospital to ensure safe and 
appropriate discharge of their patients to either the shelter or a different housing option if the case requires. 
These processes allow us to leverage case management services across multiple agencies. 

CRA will remain committed to not charging clients for housing or case management services, thereby 
further encouraging clients at risk of homelessness to seek our services by removing cost barriers to 
obtain these services.  

 
Question 7 – Familiarity with Key West, Monroe County, and the Monroe 
County Continuum-of-Care, Inc. 

Please describe your organization’s history in working in the City of Key West. Has your organization 

served City of Key West residents in the past? If so, how long have you served residents and in what 
capacity. 

Question 7 Response: 

Ms. Pintabona, CRA’s Executive Director/President, has over 10 years experience working with the City 
of Key West and various Monroe County Agencies.  In addition to long-time attendance at the CoC’s 
monthly Planning and Board of Directors meetings, she also attended every meeting between the City 
of Key West, Monroe County Sheriff’s Department, and Monroe County to reach consensus on an 
interlocal agreement for the site for a new facility and attends construction progress meetings on a 
regular basis. 

 
Over the years, CRA’s dedication to actively addressing homelessness has given it an excellent 
reputation with not only Key West residents and JJNC volunteers/staff and clients, but also a multitude 
of other non-profit agencies committed to reducing homelessness in Monroe County. These include: 
Keys Area Interdenominational Resources (KAIR), A.H. of Monroe County, Community Foundation of 
the Florida Keys (CFFK), Florida Keys Outreach Coalition (FKOC), St. Martha’s Ministry, and Star of the 
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Seas (SOS), Sunset Marina (on behalf of residents) and many others. Additionally, other agencies from 
the State and Country have contacted CRA to learn more about it’s highly successful model of 
operations.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Balance of this page intentionally left blank.]
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August 15, 2023     

Cornerstone 

Resource Alliance 

 

To:  Respected Members of the Evaluation Team for RFP 006-23 

 

As the Executive Director and President of Cornerstone Resource Alliance Inc. (CRA), I am 

pleased to submit this response to the above referenced Request for Proposal (RFP). 

 

Via CRA’s employee leadership, experience and executive Board Membership direction, 

CRA has demonstrated success in working with the City of Key West via our previous 

shelter contract management award.  We look forward to meeting the challenges of the 

shelter relocation, early construction starts of a new facility, and re-branding of the shelter’s 

image into a new vision as the John Jones Navigation Center (JJNC).    

 

Our team has decades of hands-on experience improving the lives of homeless and at risk of 

homelessness individuals and families.  More specific to this RFP response, as our 

employees and the majority of our Board Members are “locals”, we have a deep 

understanding and in-depth knowledge of the unique homeless challenges faced in our Key 

West and Monroe County community.  As proven in the past contract years, our team knows 

what it takes to successfully manage and improve the program, as well as successfully 

navigate the requirements reflected in this RFP.  We have effectively met the challenges of 

both Hurricane Ian and Covid-19 to ensure the safety of both CRA’s clients and staff and will 

continue to meet the challenges of a new facility build and any new challenges that arise in 

the years to come. 

 

We understand our mission also includes the ability to also possess the knowledge and 

experience to enable the new JJNC facility, in partnership with the City, to help both 

agencies shape an effective vision and strategy for the future reduction of homelessness and 

its’ effects on our Key West and surrounding Monroe County communities. In addition, we 

strongly believe that our unmatched experience and longstanding relationships within our 

community will be a huge asset to the City of Key West, the at large community, and most 

specifically, the unhoused community of Key West. 

  

In closing, we thank you again for your consideration of our proposal.  Please feel free to 

contact me, at 732-232-7096 or email at keyscra@keyscra.org with any questions you may 

have.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

/s/ Elicia Pintabona 

 

Elicia Pintabona, President and Executive Director 

mailto:keyscra@keyscra.org
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Qualifications Proposal Response 
 

Part I - Letter of Transmittal and Company Background 
 

Response: CRA’s Transmittal Letter is enclosed as the preceding page of this response. 
 

Part II - Qualifications/Experience 
 

Part II, Section A: Proposer’s experience in providing proposed services, including, but not limited to, 
demonstrating relevant homeless management experience, established relationships Monroe County 
Homeless Services COC, and other homeless service providers. 

 
Response: CRA has been performing services at JJNC Since 2020, under the last City contract.On a  
combined basis, the Board, Executive Director and Shelter Director of Operations have over 40+ years 
experience, 35 years of which relate directly to JJNC management and client service provisioning.      
 
We believe in measurable outcomes.  In 2022, CRA provided JJNC shelter and case management clients the 
following: 

• 49,756 bednights of shelter, including 709 unduplicated clients.  530 clients exited the shelter. 

• Clothing for 329 clients needed for job searches or new jobs 

• Rent and utility assistance for 72 households and individuals 

• 4,192 outreach and case management services to 801 unduplicated clients 

• 179 bikes for client transportation needs 

 
CRA will remain committed to data entry into the CoC’s HMIS database. Our Executive Director attends 
monthly executive CoC meetings, along with up to 27 of the CoC’s member Agencies.  Additional reporting 
and homeless analysis statistics are also available, providing additional insight into shelter and case 
management referrals, accomplishments, and measurable outcomes.  A copy of our 2022 newsletter 
outlining these accomplishments is attached under Tab C-1 of this response.    
 
Over the years, CRA’s dedication to actively addressing homelessness has given it an excellent 
reputation with not only Key West residents and JJNC volunteers/staff and clients, but also a multitude 
of other non-profit agencies committed to reducing homelessness in Monroe County. CRA has been 
contacted by multiple other agencies in the State and even the Country to discuss its highly successful 
model of operating a low-barrier homeless shelter. Valuing deep, fruitful relationships with local and 
state agencies has proven to benefit not only operations but our clients as well.  
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Part II, Section B: Qualifications and experience of Key Personnel assigned to the Management team. 

Response: The following table outlines the qualifications and experience of CRA’s Key Personnel.  
 

CRA Core Team Members 

Position Title Name Qualifications 

CRA President and 
Executive Director 

Elicia Pintabona Over the years, Ms. Pintabona’s dedication to actively addressing 
homelessness has given her an excellent reputation with not only Key West 
residents and JJNC volunteers/staff and clients, but also a multitude of other 
non-profit agencies committed to reducing homelessness in Monroe County. 
With 11 years of service to the community, she has the experience and ability 
to implement initiatives and tackle the fundamental issues of homelesness. 

Director of 
Operations 

Richard (Jay) 
Vanderhoof 

Mr. Vanderhoof meets or exceeds all qualifications in the job description. With 
2+ years of JJNC executive shelter management experience and 20 years of 
committed military and service leadership experience, he has an outstanding 
work ethic and has garnered a high level of client and staff respect and 
admiration. He is a true asset to the homeless community. 

Critical Case 
Manager 

Anne Barnett Ms. Barnett has proven to be a valuable asset to the position of case manager 
over the last 6 years. She is committed to the "hard cases" and will see them 
through. With strong working relationships within our community, her hard 
work is evident in the positive outcomes for our clients. 

Outreach Case 
Manager 

Teresa Wallace Ms. Wallace has been a case manager for over 7 years. She has worked at 
multiple shelter/homeless management sites and has provided tens of 
thousands of services over the years. Her "all business with a touch of 
sunshine" attitude is a hit with clients and staff alike. 

Data Manager Amy DeVan Ms. DeVan has worked with the homeless for over 7 years. She has worked in 
the capacity of case manager, outreach director, and now data manager, 
enabling CRA to collect/disseminate measurable outcome data and comply 
with all aspects of the CoC’s reporting requirements.  She brings a wealth of 
knowledge of all aspects of the operational plan. 

 

Part II, Section C: Number of shelters that all or some of proposed Management team have worked 

together. 

Response: The above management team are all presently employed at JJNC and work under Ms. 

Pintabona’s leadership and guidance as Executive Director. 

Part II, Section D: Familiarity with local conditions and community involvement. Provide a description of 

your local community knowledge and relationships that will offer insight on your ability to successfully 

manage this shelter. 

CRA is a long-term member in good standing with the Monroe County CoC, Ms. Pintabona (CRA’s 
Executive Director) attends the CoC’s monthly Planning and Board of Directors Meeting, is a board 
member of the COC in good standing, and has deep interactions and well-established relationships with 
the 27 local agencies that are also CoC members. Case managers also perform daily interactions with 
these agencies to assist clients and prevent duplication of services.   

She also has strong ties to both the City and County staff and has been an integral part of the multi-
agency group involved with the planning and construction of the new JJNC shelter via an interlocal 
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agreement reached between the City, the County and the Sheriff’s Department.  With this deep well of 
knowledge of the potential challenges surrounding the new facility, she has also mitigated some of the 
most contentious relationships between Sunset Marina Condo association and other community 
members who had concerns about the facility and shelter clients. CRA’s knowledge of the community, 
relationship within that community, and expertise in recognizing and navigating community challenges 
such as housing availability and lack of resources are second to none.  

 

Part II, Section E: Provide a description of your vision for the Key West Homeless Shelter and how your 

organization can contribute to the goal of ending Homelessness in Monroe County.   

Response:  CRA will maintain its dedication to providing a low barrier shelter at no cost to clients. Low 

barrier essentially means that the requirements for entry are limited or minimal. With a focus on harm-

reduction, low-barrier shelters encourage homeless individuals to seek resources by eliminating obstacles. 

(The definition of harm-reduction with regard to homelessness refers to a range of public health policies 

designed to lessen the negative social and/or physical consequences associated with various human 

behaviors.) JJNC is the only low barrier shelter available in Monroe County.  

Regarding site-specific vision, the new facility should have: 

• On Site Case Management and Staff Offices 

• Kitchen that meets Department of Health Standards 

• Commercial laundry facility 

• Adequate climate-controlled storage space 

• “Bed bug” room where clients items can be UV sanitized prior to entrance into sleeping and 
common areas 

• Adequate parking for bikes and scooters 

• Control room style monitoring design where a staff member can see multiple dorms at one time 

• 24-hour video monitoring 

• Dedicated on-site office space to provide specialized services on various days (for example 
Department of Health on Monday, Career Source on Tuesday, DCF on Wednesday, etc.) 

• Small group meeting rooms for AA, GED services, and other groups 

• Computer lab for access to apply for jobs, check on benefits, etc. Many clients have transportation 
challenges, so having this on site would assist greatly in the speed of benefits being obtained 

• On site clinic so that non-emergent medical needs can be treated by visiting nurses or medical 
volunteers, further reducing the economic consequences on the community 

 

Part II, Section F: Provide a one-page conclusion on why your organization should be selected as 
Manager for the Keys Overnight Temporary Shelter. 

 
Response: On behalf of CRA, Ms. Pintabona’s one-page conclusion follows: 

 
First, I’d like to thank you for the time you have spent reviewing this proposal. As the Founder and 

President of CRA, I want to conclude by simply stating some of the more important points of our 

proposal: 

• Day 1 Contract Readiness without interruption and with experienced personnel in place. This 



Qualifications Proposal Response  

 

area of service in a community is a highly specialized and sensitive operation.  

• As the Executive Director for an organization and loyal, committed staff that have previously run 
this facility, I have a deep and thorough knowledge of JJNC and their services, and an exemplary 
history of staying on budget. 

• I am committed to work and cooperate with the Monroe County CoC and participating agencies 
as I have done for many years now. Collaboration and good working relationships are absolutely 
vital to a programs’ success. 

•  I am confident that the organization has the experience and resourcefulness needed to mitigate 
emergencies and/or disasters that may occur. With a background in emergency services, social 
services, and deep cooperative ties to the community, CRA is able to mobilize resources and 
successfully navigate emergencies or disasters that may occur. With first-hand experience 
during Irma, Ian, and the Covid19 pandemic CRA would continue, without interruption, to utilize 
best practices and diligent adherence to local, county and state protective measures to keep the 
most vulnerable of our citizens protected. 

• CRA will hold on to and implement the vision of an all-encompassing facility which can fast track 
a client’s ability to overcome homelessness and matriculate back to self-sufficiency. 

 
It is my sincere hope that we have put together a proposal by which a decision can confidently be 
made to have CRA continue operating JJNC and providing services to the homeless and at-risk 
populations in our community. I truly value serving the clients and community in the capacity of 
operating the City’s Homeless Shelter.  

 
Part II, Section G: Reference Verification   

Response: References follow below.  
Monroe County Department of Health Administrator 
and Health Officer 
Dr. Carla Fry, PhD, MSN 
1100 Simonton St 

Key West, FL 33040 
305-293-7500 | Carla.Fry@flhealth.gov 

Relationship - Professional Associate 
 

Scott Pridgen 
AH Monroe Executive Director 
1434 Kennedy Dr 

Key West, FL 33040 
305-296-6196 | scott.pridgen@ahmonroe.org 
Relationship - Professional Associate 

 

Mark Lenkner 
Monroe County Continuum of Care 
P.O. Box 2410 

Key West, FL 33040 
313-283-8848 | mark.lenkner@monroehomelesscoc.org  
Relationship - Professional Associate 

mailto:Carla.Fry@flhealth.gov
mailto:mark.lenkner@monroehomelesscoc.org
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Part III - Management Approach 
 

Proposer shall provide a conceptual five (5) year Management plan focusing on the following items. 
Creativity and Vision shall play a large role in the review scoring. 

 
Part III, Section A Business approach - Include first year plans to transition homeless from temporary 
to permanent housing. Research shows intervention to prevent homelessness are more cost effective 
than addressing issues after someone is already homeless. How will your organization prevent, and 
remediate members from being homeless? 

 
Response: As JJNC and our outreach case managers are often the first stop for homeless and at risk of 
homelessness clients, we have outlined various tactics and approaches throughout this proposal 
response, including rent and utility assistance, among others. Our response incorporates “lessons 
learned” from our extensive and long-term experience in both shelter and outreach case management 
successes.   

 
CRA’s Case Management team will also continue to provide service coordination and make client 
referrals to Monroe County CoC agencies that are funded to do rental and mortgage assistance 
programs (such as Catholic Charities, FKOC and KAIR, for example). As is the current practice, these 
referrals and activities will continue to be documented by staff into the CoC’s HMIS software (Client 
Track). 

 
The new facility vision we have outlined also includes additional “brick and mortar” features which will 

allow us to provide dedicated on-site office space to provide specialized services on various days: small 

group meeting rooms for groups such as AA and GED services; a computer room for client access to apply 

for jobs, check on benefits, etc.; and, an on-site clinic so that non-emergent medical needs can be 

treated by visiting nurses or medical volunteers, further reducing the economic consequences on the 

community. 

These approaches are briefly summarized in the table on the following page: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Balance of this page intentionally left blank.]
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5 Year Business Management Approach Highlights 
Including Program Elements to Reduce Homelessness 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 
3-5 

• Funding permitting, hire of an 
additional Case Manager to focus on 
youth, clients with disabilities and 
newly released homeless inmates 

• Increase # of AA/NA meetings 
• Expand Employment Services 
• Establish stronger linkages with 

Mental and Physical Health agencies 
focused on the homeless 

• Creation of an open Community 
Activist Group 

• Expand business community contact 
depth as sources for donations, 
supplies and enhanced client food 
selections 

• Compile a report measuring the 
successes, improvements and 
enhancements needed for the Y1 
programs 

• Design and implement any new 
homelessness prevention programs 
identified 

• Perform feasibility study of case 
management expansion into Middle and 
Upper Keys 

• Assuming new facility construction is 
complete, expand on-site services as 
previously detailed in the “Facility 
Vision” above in Part II, Section E. If 
facility build is not completed, move to 
Y3 for implementation 

• Continue successful 
homelessness prevention 
programs, along with 
appropriate measurements of 
success 

• Begin case management 
expansion in accordance with 
feasibility plan established in Y2 

• Expand on-site services if Y2 
facility construction build is 
delayed to Y3 

 

 

Part III, Section B: Financial Approach – Present a financial management plan which shall include, 
business Controls, and accounting procedures for the operational management of JJNC. 

 
Response:  Documented Internal controls to protect not only financial, but also client documents 

(including HIPAA sensitive information) consist of the following procedures, including but not limited to: 

• Secure banking website for EFT transfers and invoicing from and to the City 

• Low limit (under $500 or less) credit cards issued to appropriate management. All purchases 
over $100 must be approved by the Executive Director 

• Dual signatures of the Executive Director and Board Chair are required on all checks over $5000 

• Checks will be maintained off-premises in a locked and secure location 

• For audit purposes, files will be maintained in an appropriate order and secured in a locked filing 
cabinet at the JJNC facility with as-needed access given only as the Executive Director deems 
appropriate 

• All paper client and case management files will be held in a locked cabinet with access given only 
as the Executive Director deems appropriate 

• Electronic Case Management files will be passworded and accessible only to appropriate 
personnel 

• Each Case Manager with access to the CoC’s HMIS software (Client Track) will utilize a separate 
log-in and ensure log-in passwords are protected to ensure no unauthorized access occurs 
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In addition to a bookkeeper, CRA also maintains the services of an outside CPA, who reviews 

bookkeeping entries and prepares our 990 filings.  Audits are done annually by an outside independent 

CPA Auditor. 

Section III, Part C: Facility Approach – Provide a brief summary of facility management of JJNC, 

including proposed means to maintain the facility. Means of periodic facility review including condition, 

cleanliness, necessary repairs and possible enhancements to further the goal of maintaining the facility 

should be incorporated. 

Response: In addition to utilizing a veteran and fully trained staff, CRA recognizes that the consistency 

of facility cleanliness and maintenance efforts are essential to client health and safety. To ensure this 

consistency, CRA has developed the following checklists for use by shelter staff.  These protocols will 

be adjusted appropriately when the new, permanent facility is opened. 

 

 
 

• Window Unit Air Conditioner filters are checked and cleaned in A-D dorms and the office trailer. 

• Sanitation of facility done at least daily, and as needed/continually including: 
o bleaching and disinfecting all surfaces including concrete 
o trash removal to dumpster 
o sweeping 
o laundry (approximately 50 loads per day) 
o clean bathroom and shower facilities 
o all dorms and sleeping quarters are cleaned and sanitized 

 

 

• Lawn Maintenance 

• Refrigerators and Freezers cleaned 

• Dry goods, cleaning supply, and food inventory taken 

• Mold Removal spot treatments with X-14 mold and mildew remover done in dorms 

• Bug and pest remediation, including rat traps 

• Check air filter in women’s dorm trailer (filters are changed on average bi-weekly) 

 

 

• Power washing to clean and remediate mold in dorms A-D 

• Purge Donations 

• Final monthly inventory for ordering completed 

• Forward list of repairs and forecasted repairs to Marcus Davila (This is a new item CRA will be 
implementing. Increased communication and the potential to remedy potential problems before they 
become an emergent issue is a goal of CRA moving forward.) 

Daily Facility Tasks 

Weekly Facility Tasks 

Monthly Facility Tasks 
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• Walk through with Community Services Department from the City of Key West. (Previously this had 
been done annually, however, with the addition of the tents coupled with the age and condition of 
the previous facility, we believe it should be done twice a year moving forward.) 

 

 

• CRA will notify Community Services of any emergent repairs as needed. Emergent will be deemed 
anything that opens either CRA or the City of Key West up to potential liability, a perceived or actual 
dangerous condition, or a condition that impairs or halts operations. 

• CRA will be responsible only for minor maintenance such as replacing light bulbs, toilet seats, and 
minor repairs that are within the scope of their knowledge and insurance allowances to do so. 

 

Section III, Part D: Provide a copy of Proposer’s most recent financial statement 

Response: CRA’s most recent audited financial statement follows and can also be located under Tab F 

of the complete proposal response in electronic format.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bi-Annual Facility Tasks 

Maintenance and Repair Expectations 
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NON-PROFIT BYLAWS 

OF 

CORNERSTONE RESOURCE ALLIANCE INC. 
 

State of Florida 

 
 

PREAMBLE: 
 

The name of this non-profit organization is CORNERSTONE RESOURCE ALLIANCE 
INC. This organization is organized in accordance with the Florida Not for Profit 
Corporation Act, as amended. The organization has not been formed for the purposes of 
making profit or obtaining personal financial gain. The assets and income of this 
organization shall not be distributed to or for the benefit of the trustees, directors, or any 
other officers. The assets and income shall only be used to promote non-profit purposes 
as described below. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to prohibit the payment 
of a modest and reasonable compensation to employees and contractors for services 
provided for the benefit of the organization. This organization shall not carry on any 
activities not permitted to be carried out by a non-profit organization exempt from federal 
income tax. The organization shall not endorse any candidate or contribute to or work for 
or otherwise support or oppose any candidate for public office. This organization has 
been created exclusively for purposes subsequent to section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

 

ARTICLE 1. NAME 
 

The legal name of the Non-Profit Organization shall be known as Cornerstone Resource 
Alliance Inc., and shall herein be referred to as CRA or “the Organization”. 

 

ARTICLE 2. PURPOSE 
 

CRA is established within the meaning of IRS Publication 557 Section 501(c)3 
Organization of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") or the 
corresponding section of any future federal tax code and shall be operated exclusively to 
provide shelter and supportive services to homeless or at risk individuals. . 

 

In addition, CRA has been formed for the purpose of performing all things incidental to, 
or appropriate in, the foregoing specific and primary purposes. However, CRA shall not, 
except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activity or the exercise of any powers 
which are not in furtherance of its primary non-profit purposes. 

 

CRA shall hold and may exercise all such powers as may be conferred upon any 
nonprofit organization by the laws of the State of Florida and as may be necessary or 
expedient for the administration of the affairs and attainment of the purposes of the 
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Organization. At no time and in no event shall CRA participate in any activities which 
have not been permitted to be carried out by a Corporation/Organization exempt under 
Section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"), such as certain 
political and legislative activities. 

 

ARTICLE 3. MEETINGS 
 

1. Annual Meetings. An annual meeting shall be held once every calendar year for 
the purposes of electing directors and transaction of such other business as may 
properly come before the meeting. The annual meeting shall be held at the time and 
place designated by the Board of Directors. 

 

1. The following orders of business shall be addressed during the annual 
meeting unless decided otherwise by the Board of Directors via written notice: 

 

a. Election of new directors 
 

b. Reviewing the annual report 
 

c. Any other transaction of such other business as may be properly brought 
before the meeting 

 

2. The annual meeting shall take place at the following location unless 
determined otherwise via written notice: 

 

Teleconference 
 

2. Regular Meetings. The Board’s regular meetings may be held at such time and 
place as shall be determined by the Board. 

 

3. Special Meetings. Special meetings may be requested by the Chair or any other 
member of the Board of Directors. 

 

Any meeting of members is not required to be held at a geographic location if the 
meeting is held by means of teleconference or another form of electronic 
communications in a manner pursuant to which all members have the chance to 
read and/or hear the proceedings substantially concurrent with the occurrence of the 
proceedings, raise points on matters submitted to the members, pose questions, 
and make any desired comments. 

 

4. Notice. The following amount of written notice of all regular meetings shall be 
provided under this section or as otherwise required by law: 5 business days. The 
following amount of written notice of all special meetings shall be provided under 
this section or as otherwise required by law: 2 business days. The notice shall 
include the date, hour, and location of the meeting and, if for a special meeting, the 
purpose of the meeting. Such notice shall be e-mailed to all directors of record at 
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the e-address provided by the Board Member, at least 5 business days prior to the 
meeting. 

 

5. Quorum. At each meeting of the Board of Directors, the presence of one over half 
of the Board members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In 
the absence of a quorum, the Board members present may adjourn the meeting 
from without further notice until a quorum shall be present. If a quorum is 
represented at a rescheduled meeting, any business may be transacted that might 
have been transacted at the meeting as originally scheduled. The act of the majority 
of the Board members serving on the Board and present at a meeting in which there 
is a quorum shall be the act of the Board or Board Committees, unless otherwise 
provided by these Bylaws, or a law specifically requiring otherwise. The directors 
present at a meeting represented by a quorum may continue to transact business 
until adjournment, even if the withdrawal of some directors results in a 
representation of less than a quorum, however the Board will not be able to vote on 
action items without a quorum. 

 

6. Informal Actions/Action by Written Consent. Any action required to be taken, or 
which may be taken, at a meeting, may be taken without a meeting and without prior 
notice if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, is signed by the 
Directors with respect to the subject matter of the vote.The number of directors 
taking said action must constitute a quorum for an action taken by written consent. 
Such consent shall be recorded and shall have the same force and effect as a vote 
of the Board taken at an actual meeting. In addition, facsimile signatures and 
electronic signatures or other electronic "consent click" acknowledgments shall be 
effective as original signatures. 

 

7. Voting. Each Board Member shall only have one vote. 
 

8. Proxy. Members of the Board shall note be allowed to vote by proxy. 

 

ARTICLE 4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

9. Role of Directors. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for having the 
authority of managing the affairs of CRA directly and/or by delegation. 

 

10. Number of Directors. The organization shall be managed by a Board of Directors 
consisting of no less than 5 directors. 

 

11. Election and Term of Office. The Directors shall be elected by a majority vote at 
the annual meeting. Each Director shall serve at will for unlimited consecutive terms, 
or until and unless a successor has been elected and qualified. 

 

12. Quorum. A quorum of the Directors shall be the following: Presence of one 
member over half of the total Board of Directors. 
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13. Procedures. The vote of a majority of the Directors present at a properly called 
meeting as dictated by these Bylaws at which a quorum is present shall be the act 
of the Board of Directors unless the vote of a greater number is required by law or 
by these Bylaws for a particular resolution. A Director of the organization who is 
present at a meeting at the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate 
matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless their 
dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting. The Board shall keep written 
minutes of its proceedings in its permanent records. The minutes will include, at the 
least, names of all members present, resolutions proposed and voted upon, and any 
Director abstentions or objections to resolutions. 

 

14. Vacancies and Removals. A Director shall be subjected to removal, with or 
without cause, at a meeting at which that item is on the agenda, by a vote of the 
majority of then-serving Board members. Any vacancy that occurs on the Board of 
Directors, whether by death, resignation, removal, or any other reason, may be filled 
by a majority vote of the remaining Directors. 

 

15. Resignation. Each Board member shall have the right to resign at any time upon 
written notice thereof to the Chair of the Board, or the Executive Director. Unless 
otherwise specified in the notice, the resignation shall take effect upon receipt 
thereof, and the acceptance of such resignation shall take effect upon receipt 
thereof, and the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it 
effective. If a Director wishes to resign from their directorial position, they shall do so 
in the following manner: 

 

Provide written resignation to either the President of the Organization or the 
Chairpersons of the Board of Directors. 

 

16. Board Meeting Attendance. An elected Board Member who is absent from 3 
regular meetings of the Board during a calendar year shall be encouraged to 
reevaluate with the Chair of the Board his/her commitment to the Organization. The 
Board may deem a Board member who has missed 3 consecutive meetings without 
such a reevaluation with the Chair to have resigned from the Board. 

 

17. Committees. To the extent permitted by Florida law, the Board of Directors may 
appoint from its members a committee or committees, temporary or permanent, and 
designate the duties, powers, and authorities of such committees. The committees 
shall have a specific purpose and the Board of Directors, in creating a committee, 
shall outline the parameters of the committee, including, but not limited to, meetings, 
notice, quorum requirements, and all other pertinent procedures. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5. OFFICERS 
 

18. Officers of the Board of Directors. The officers will be selected by the Board at 
its annual meeting, and shall serve the needs of the Board, subject to all the rights, 
if any, of any officer who may be under a contract of employment. Therefore, without 
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any bias or predisposition to the rights of any officer that may be under any contract 
of employment, any officer may be removed with or without cause by the Board. All 
officers have the right to resign at any time by providing notice in writing to the Chair 
of the Board and/or President, of the Organization, without bias or predisposition to 
all rights, if any, of the Organization under any contract to which said officer is a part 
thereof. All resignations shall become effective upon the date on which the written 
notice of resignation is received or at any time later as may be specified within the 
resignation; and unless otherwise indicated within the written notice, a stated 
acceptance of the resignation shall not be required to make the resignation 
effective. 

 

Two or more offices may be held by one person. The Chairperson may not 
concurrently serve in another position. 

 

19. Officer Roles. The Officers shall have the following responsibilities in their roles: 
 

Chair of the Board -- The Chair shall preside over all meetings of the Board of 
Directors and its Executive Committee, if such a committee is created by the 
Board of Directors, sign all corporate documents unless they delegate that 
responsibility to another Officer, and direct the process of the creation and 
implementation of resolutions. 

 

Vice President -- The Vice President shall be responsible for performing the 
duties of the President in the President's absence and assist the President with 
the performance of their duties. 

 

Secretary -- The Secretary, or his/her designee, shall be the custodian of all 
records and documents of the Organization, which are required to be kept at the 
principal office of CRA, and shall act as secretary at all meetings of the Board of 
Directors, and shall keep the minutes of all such meetings on file in hard copy or 
electronic format. 

 

Treasurer -- The Treasurer shall be responsible for conducting the 
organization's financial affairs as directed by the Board of Directors and shall 
prepare and present reports regarding corporate finances as required, but no 
less often than at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 

President (Executive Director) -- It shall be the responsibility of the President, in 
general, to supervise and conduct all activities and operations of the 
Organization, subject to the control, advice and consent of the Board of 
Directors. The President shall keep the Board of Directors completely informed, 
shall freely consult with them in relation to all activities of the Organization, and 
shall see that all orders and/or resolutions of the Board are carried out to the 
effect intended. The Board of Directors may place the President under a 
contract of employment where appropriate. The President shall be empowered 
to act, speak for, or otherwise represent the Organization between meetings of 
the Board. The President shall be responsible for the hiring and firing of all 
personnel and shall be responsible for keeping the Board informed at all times 
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of staff performance and for implementing any personnel policies which may be 
adopted and implemented by the Board. The President, at all times, is 

 

authorized to contract, receive, deposit, disburse and account for all funds of CRA, to 
execute in the name of the Organization all contracts and other documents authorized 
either generally or specifically by the Board to be executed by the Organization, and to 
negotiate any and all material business transactions of the Organization. 

 

ARTICLE 6. COMMITEES OF DIRECTORS 
 

20. Commitees. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, and by resolution 
adopted by a majority of the directors then in office provided that a quorum is present, 
designate one or more committees to exercise all or a portion of the authority of the 
Board, to the extent of the powers specifically delegated in the resolution of the Board or 
in these Bylaws. Each such committee shall consist of at least two (2) directors, and 
may also include persons who are not on the Board but whom the directors believe to be 
reliable and competent to serve at the specific committee. However, committees 
exercising any authority of the Board of Directors may not have any non-director 
members. The appointment of members of a committee requires the vote of a majority of 
the directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present. The Board of Directors 
may also designate one or more advisory committees that do not have the authority of 
the Board. However, no committee, regardless of Board resolution, may: 

 

a) Approve of any action that, pursuant to applicable Law, would also require the 
affirmative vote of the members of the Board if this were a membership vote. 

 

b) Fill vacancies on, or remove the members of, the Board of Directors or any 
committee that has the authority of the Board. 

 

c) Fix compensation of the directors serving on the Board or on any committee. 
 

d) Amend or repeal the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws or adopt new bylaws. 
 

e) Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors that by its express 
terms is not so amendable or repealable. 

 

f) Appoint any other committees of the Board of Directors or their members. 
 

g) Approve a plan of merger, consolidation, voluntary dissolution, bankruptcy, or 
reorganization; or a plan for the sale, lease, or exchange of all or considerably all 
of the property and assets of the Corporation/Organization otherwise than in the 
usual and regular course of its business; or revoke any such plan. 

 

h) Approve any self-dealing transaction, except as provided pursuant to law. 
 

21. Meetings and Actions of Committees. Meetings and actions of all committees shall 
be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with these Bylaws concerning 
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meetings and actions of the directors, with such changes in the context of those bylaws 
as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the Board of Directors 
and its members, except that the time for regular meetings of committees may be 
determined either by resolution of the Board of Directors or by resolution of the 
committee. Special meetings of committees may also be called by resolution of the 
Board of Directors. Minutes shall be kept of each meeting of any committee and shall be 
filed with the Organizations records. The Board of Directors may adopt rules not 
consistent with the provisions of these bylaws for the governance of any committee. 

 

ARTICLE 7. AMENDING BYLAWS 
 

22. Amendment Procedure. The Bylaws may be amended, altered, or repealed by 
the Board of Directors by a majority of a quorum vote at any regular or special 
meeting. The full text of the proposed change shall be distributed to all board 
members at least fourteen (14) days before the meeting where the change is to be 
voted on. 

 

ARTICLE 8. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

23. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Organization shall 
indemnify its "agents," as described by law, including its directors, officers, 
employees and volunteers, and including persons formerly occupying any such 
position, and their heirs, executors and administrators, against all expenses, 
judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred 
by them in connection with any "proceeding," and including any action by or in the 
right of CRA, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person as described 
in the Non-Profit Corporation Act. Such right of indemnification shall not be deemed 
exclusive of any other right to which such persons may be entitled apart from this 
Article. 

 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, and, except as otherwise determined by the 
Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking indemnification 
in defending any "proceeding" shall not be advanced by the Organization of an 
undertaking by or on behalf of that person to repay such amount unless it is 
ultimately determined that the person is entitled to be indemnified by the 
Organization for those expenses. 

 

The Organization shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on 
behalf of any agent of the Organization, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or 
arising out of the agent's status as such, or to give other indemnification to the 
extent permitted by law. 

 

ARTICLE 9. EXECUTION OF CORPORATE INSTRUMENTS 
 

24. Execution of Corporate Instruments. The Board of Directors may, at its 
discretion, determine the method and designate the signatory officer or officers, or 
other person or persons, to execute any corporate instrument or document, or to 
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sign the corporate name without limitation, except when otherwise provided by law, 
and such execution or signature shall be binding upon the Organization. 

 

Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board of Directors or otherwise 
required by law, formal contracts of the Organization, promissory notes, deeds of 
trust, mortgages, other evidences of indebtedness of the Organization, other CRA 
instruments or documents, memberships in other corporations/organizations, and 
certificates of shares of stock owned by the Corporation/Organization shall be 
executed, signed, and/or endorsed by the President. 

 

All checks and drafts drawn on banks or other depositories on funds to the credit of 
the Organization, or in special accounts of the Organization, shall be signed by such 
person or persons as the Board of Directors shall authorize to do so. 

 

25. Loans and Contracts. No loans or advances shall be contracted on behalf of the 
Organization and no note or other evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its 
name unless and except as the specific transaction is authorized by the Board of 
Directors. Without the express and specific authorization of the Board, no officer or 
other agent of the Organization may enter into any contract or execute and deliver 
any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation/Organization. 

 

ARTICLE 10. RECORDS AND REPORTS 
 

26. Maintenance and Inspection of Articles and Bylaws. The 
Corporation/Organization shall keep at its principal office the original or a copy of its 
Articles of Incorporation and bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to 
inspection by the directors at all reasonable times during office hours. 

 

27. Maintenance and Inspection of Federal Tax Exemption Application and Annual 
Information Returns. The Organization shall keep at its principal office a copy of its 
federal tax exemption application and its annual information returns for three years 
from their date of filing, which shall be open to public inspection and copying to the 
extent required by law. 

 

28. Maintenance and Inspection of Other Corporate Records. The Organization 
shall keep adequate and correct books and records of accounts and written minutes 
of the proceedings of the Board and committees of the Board. All such records shall 
be kept at a place or places as designated by the Board and committees of the 
Board, or in the absence of such designation, at the principal office of the 
Organization. The minutes shall be kept in written or typed form, and other books 
and records shall be kept either in written or typed form or in any form capable of 
being converted into written, typed, or printed form. Upon leaving office, each 
officer, employee, or agent of the Organization shall turn over to his or her 
successor or the Chair of the Board or President, in good order, such organization 
monies, books, records, minutes, lists, documents, contracts or other property of the 
Organization as have been in the custody of such officer, employee, or agent during 
his or her term of office. 
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Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all 
books, records, and documents of every kind and the physical properties of the 
Organization. 

 

29. Preparation of Annual Financial Statements. The Organization shall prepare 
annual financial statements using generally accepted accounting principles. Such 
statements shall be audited by an independent certified public accountant, in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting standards. The Organization shall 
make these financial statements available to the necessary local State and Federal 
agencies and members of the public for inspection no later than 90 days after the 
close of the fiscal year to which the statements relate. 

 

30. Annual Report. The Board shall ensure an annual report is sent to all directors 
within 60 days after the end of the fiscal year of the Organization, which shall 
contain the following information: 

 

a) The assets and liabilities at the end of the fiscal year. 
 

b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities during the fiscal year. 
 

c) The expenses or disbursements of the Organization for both general and 
restricted purposes during the fiscal year. 

 

d) The information required by Non-Profit Corporation Act concerning certain self- 
dealing transactions involving more than $50,000 or indemnifications involving 
more than $10,000 which took place during the fiscal year. 

 

ARTICLE 11. STANDARD OF CARE 
 

31. General. A director shall perform all the duties of a director, including, but not 
limited to, duties as a member of any committee of the Board on which the director 
may serve, in such a manner as the director deems to be in the best interest of the 
Organization and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinary, 
prudent, and reasonable person in a similar situation may exercise under similar 
circumstances. 

 

In the performance of the duties of a director, a director shall be entitled to rely on 
information, opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and 
other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by: 

 

a) One or more officers or employees of the Corporation/Organization whom the 
director deems to be reliable and competent in the matters presented; 

 

b) Counsel, independent accountants, or other persons, as to the matters which 
the director deems to be within such person's professional or expert competence; 
or 
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c) A committee of the Board upon which the director does not serve, as to matters 
within its designated authority, which committee the director deems to merit 
confidence, 

 

so long as in any such case the director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry 
when the need may be indicated by the circumstances, and without knowledge that 
would cause such reliance to be unwarranted. 

 

Except as herein provided in Article 11 - Standard of Care, any person who performs 
the duties of a director in accordance with the above shall have no liability based 
upon any failure or alleged failure to discharge that person's obligations as a 
director, including, without limitation of the following, any actions or omissions which 
exceed or defeat a public or charitable purpose to which the Organization, or assets 
held by it, are dedicated. 

 

32. Conflict of Interest. The purpose of the Conflict of Interest policy is to protect the 
Organization's interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or 
arrangement that might benefit the private interest of one of its officers or directors, 
or that might otherwise result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is 
intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws 
governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable 
corporations/organizations and is not intended as an exclusive statement of 
responsibilities. 

 

33. Duty to Disclose. In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an 
interested person must disclose the existence of the financial or other potential 
conflict of interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the 
directors who are considering the proposed transaction or arrangement. 

 

34. Establishing a Conflict of Interest. After the disclosure of the financial or other 
potential conflict of interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with eh 
interested person, the interested person shall leave the Board meeting while the 
potential conflict is discussed an voted upon. The remaining Board members shall 
decide if a conflict of interest exists. 

 

35. Addressing a Conflict of Interest. In the event that the Board should establish 
that a proposed transaction or arrangement establishes a conflict of interest, the 
Board shall then proceed with the following actions: 

 

a) Any interested person may render a request or report at the Board meeting, 
but upon completion of said request or report the individual shall be excused 
while the Board discusses the information and/or material presented and then 
votes on the transaction or arrangement proposed involving the possible conflict 
of interest. 

 

b) The Chair of the Board of the Board shall, if deemed necessary and 
appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate 
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement. 
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c) After exercising due diligence, the Board shall determine whether the 
Organization can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction 
or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of 
interest. 

 

d) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible 
under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the Board shall 
determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction 
or arrangement is in the best interest of the Organization, for its own benefit, and 
whether it is fair and reasonable. It shall make its decision as to whether to enter 
into the transaction arrangement in conformity with this determination. 

 

36. Violations of Conflict of Interest Policy. Should the Board have reasonable cause 
to believe an interested person has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of 
interest, the Board shall then inform the interested person of the basis for such belief 
and afford the interested person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to 
disclose. 

 

If, after hearing the interested person's explanation, and after making further 
investigation as may be warranted in consideration of the circumstances, the Board 
determines the interested person intentionally failed to disclose an actual or possible 
conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action. 

 

37. Acknowledgement of Conflict of Interest Policy. Each director, principal officer, 
and member of a committee with Board delegated powers shall be required to sign a 
statement which affirms that such person: 

 

a) Has received a copy of the conflict of interest policy; 
 

b) Has read and understands the policy; 
 

c) Has agreed to comply with the policy; and 
 

d) Understands that the Organization is charitable, and in order to maintain its 
federal tax exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one 
or more of its tax-exempt purposes. 

 

38. Violation of Loyalty – Self Dealing Contracts. A self-dealing contract is any 
contract or transaction (i) between this Organization and one or more of its Directors, 
or between this Corporation/Organization and any corporation, firm, or association in 
which one or more of the Directors has a material financial interest ("Interested 
Director"), or (ii) between this Organization and a corporation, firm, or association of 
which one or more of its directors are Directors of this Organization. Said self- 
dealing shall not be void or voidable because such Director(s) of corporation, firm, or 
association are parties or because said Director(s) are present at the meeting of the 
Board of Directors or committee which authorizes, approves or ratifies the self- 
dealing contract, if: 
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a) All material facts are fully disclosed to or otherwise known by the members of 
the Board and the self-dealing contract is approved by the Interested Director in 
good faith (without including the vote of any membership owned by said 
interested Director(s)); 

 

b) All material facts are fully disclosed to or otherwise known by the Board of 
Directors or committee, and the Board of Directors or committee authorizes, 
approves, or ratifies the self-dealing contract in good faith—without counting the 
vote of the interest Director(s)—and the contract is just and reasonable as to the 
Organization at the time it is authorized, approved, or ratified; or 

 

c) As to contracts not approved as provided in above sections (a) and/or (b), the 
person asserting the validity of the self-dealing contract sustains the burden of 
proving that the contract was just and reasonable as to the Organization at the 
time it was authorized, approved, or ratified. 

 

Interested Director(s) may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a 
meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof, which authorizes, 
approves, or ratifies a contract or transaction as provided for and contained in this 
section. 

 

ARTICLE 12. FISCAL YEAR 
 

39. The organizations fiscal year shall end on June 30. 
 

ARTICLE 13. CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS 
 

40. Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provisions, rules of 
construction, and definitions contained in the Non-Profit Corporation Act as 
amended from time to time shall govern the construction of these bylaws. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, the masculine gender includes the feminine 
and neuter, the singular number includes the plural and the plural number includes 
the singular, and the term "person" includes a Corporation/Organization as well as a 
natural person. If any competent court of law shall deem any portion of these bylaws 
invalid or inoperative, then so far as is reasonable and possible (i) the remainder of 
these bylaws shall be considered valid and operative, and (ii) effect shall be given to 
the intent manifested by the portion deemed invalid or inoperative. 

 

ARTICLE 14. DISSOLUTION 
 

41. Dissolution Procedure. The organization may be dissolved only with the 
authorization of the Board of Directors given a special meeting called for that 
express purpose and with the subsequent approval of a supermajority (2/3rds) vote 
of the members. 

 

42. Liabilities. All liabilities and obligations shall be paid, satisfied, and discharged, 
or adequate provisions shall be made, therefore. 



 

43. Distribution of Assets. Assets not held upon a condition requiring return, 
transfer, or conveyance to any other organization, individual, or entity shall 
be distributed, transferred, or conveyed, in trust or otherwise, to charitable 
and educational organization, organized under Section 501(c)3 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, of a similar or like nature to 
this organization, as determined by the Board of Directors. 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I, Elicia Pintabona, President of CORNERSTONE RESOURCE ALLIANCE INC. 
certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Bylaws of the above-
named organization, duly adopted by the Initial Board of Directors on October 1, 
2020. 

 

/s/ Elicia Pintabona 
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Management Agency 

For the purposes of these policies, the Management Agency is Cornerstone Resources Alliance, Inc. 

(CRA).   

Location 

For the purposes of these policies, the location/facility is the low barrier emergency homeless shelter, 

located at 5537 College Rd. Key West, FL 33040. 

Equal opportunity 

CRA operates this facility without regard to race, color, religion or belief, national, social or ethnic origin, 

sex (including pregnancy), age, physical, mental or sensory disability, HIV Status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity and/or expression, marital, civil union or domestic partnership status, past or present 

military service, family medical history or genetic information, family or parental status, or any other 

applicable legally protected characteristics.  

Discrimination and Harassment 

CRA will not tolerate discrimination or harassment. 

CRA will receive and investigate complaints from interested parties related to alleged discriminatory 

practices using the complaint/grievance procedure.  

Harassment consists of unwelcome conduct, verbal or physical, based upon a person’s status such as 

race, religion, gender, marital status, age, national origin, handicap, or sexual orientation or any other 

applicable legally protected characteristic. This policy prohibits harassment of any form. 

Any perceived offense of this policy by clients, staff, or Board of Directors (BOD) members will be 

reported in writing to the Director of Operations (DO), Executive Director (ED), or BOD.   

The DO, ED and/or BOD will take any corrective action necessary, up to and including termination of an 

individual found to be engaged in harassment.  

Accommodation of Disabilities 

In implementing its commitment to equal access, CRA will make reasonable accommodations for clients, 

and employees with known disabilities.  

Drug-free Facility 

CRA may conduct random drug and alcohol tests on employees. Refusal to take a test may be construed 

as an admission by the employee that he/she is under the influence. No employee shall be permitted to 

work or attend meetings while under the influence of alcohol or any illicit substance and/or other 

medication not prescribed by a physician. Reporting to work or participating in any other situation in 

which the employee is conducting CRA business or representing CRA while under the influence, is cause 

for termination.  
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Placement for Transgender Clients 

CRA operates in accordance with the Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs Regardless of Sexual 

Orientation or Gender Identity final rule and the Office for Civil Rights in the Office of Justice Programs at 

the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), shelter facilities and services are made available to individuals 

without regard to actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status. The DOJ 

guidance states: 

“A recipient that operates a sex-segregated or sex-specific program should assign a beneficiary to the 

group or service which corresponds to the gender with which the beneficiary identifies, with the 

following considerations. In deciding how to house a victim, a recipient that provides sex-segregated 

housing may consider on a case-by-case basis whether a particular housing assignment would ensure 

the victim’s health and safety. A victim’s own views with respect to personal safety deserve serious 

consideration. Additionally, a recipient may not make a determination about services for one beneficiary 

based on the complaints of another beneficiary when those complaints are based on gender identity.” 

Complaints/Grievance Policy 

When a Client or volunteer submits a complaint about CRA policies or operations, they must go through 

the formal grievance policy. The grievance Policy is attached as Attachment 1 to these SOP’s.  

Confidentiality  

CRA employees will respect the confidentiality of any persons seeking assistance or any other services 

from the organization. In accordance with our commitment to provide a low barrier shelter, CRA will 

provide information as required by law about any convicted sexual offenders residing at KOTS, however 

we do not discriminate against sexual offenders utilizing our services.   

Non-disclosure of confidential information 

Any information that an employee learns about CRA, or its BOD, employees, clients or donors, as a 

result of working for CRA that is not otherwise publicly available constitutes confidential information. 

Employees may not disclose confidential information to anyone who is not employed by CRA or to other 

CRA employees unless it is deemed essential to rendering services and/or supervision of said employees.  

The protection of privileged and confidential information is vital to the interests and integrity of CRA. 

The disclosure, distribution, electronic transmission, or copying, of CRA’s confidential information is 

prohibited. Such information includes, but is not limited to the following examples:  

• Compensation/Payroll data  

• Program and financial information 

• Client specific information  

• No information may be released to the media without approval of the ED or the Chair. 

Whistleblower protection 

CRA shall not take any retaliatory action against an employee or client because that employee or client 

does any of the following: 
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• Discloses, or threatens to disclose, to a supervisor, a director, or to a public body, an activity, 

policy, or practice of CRA or another employer, with whom there is a business relationship, that 

the employee reasonably believes is in violation of a law, or a rule or regulation issued under the 

law, or,  

• Provides information to, or testifies before, any public body conducting an investigation, hearing 

or inquiry into any violation of law, or a rule or regulation issued under the law by the CRA or 

another employer, with whom there is a business relationship, or, 

• Objects to, or refuses to participate in, any activity, policy or practice which the employee 

reasonably believes: is in violation of a law, or a rule or regulation issued under the law, or, is 

fraudulent or criminal; or is incompatible with a clear mandate of public policy concerning the 

public health, safety or welfare or protection of the environment. 

 

Gifts 

Employees may not receive personal gifts from those who may obtain benefits from CRA, such as 

employment, contract, or monetary gifts. Employees may not receive or accept any income, loans, or 

gifts, whether monetary or material from clients.  

Computer and information security  

CRA may provide computer and communication systems to operate their programs. Each user is 

personally responsible to ensure that they are using CRA/KOTS computers for their intended use. 

Downloading, streaming, or accessing non work-related websites, games, or other media is prohibited. 

CRA may monitor usage of the internet by employees, including reviewing a list of sites accessed by an 

individual. No individual should have any expectation of privacy in terms of his or her usage of the 

internet. In addition, CRA may restrict access to certain sites that it deems are not necessary for 

business purposes.  

All data in CRA’s computer are the property of CRA. CRA holds the right to inspect their computers and 

documents at any time.   

Operations 

Capacity 

Capacity is determined by the Fire Marshall.  

Entrance and Admission 

KOTS is a non-fee based, low barrier shelter. Clients must be homeless to be eligible for services. Clients 

will never be charged for services at the facility, and barriers such as mental health, criminal history, and 

substance use will not negate their eligibility to receive services. Standards of care regarding Equal 

Opportunity and Harassment/Discrimination previously described in this SOP apply unilaterally to 

employment and client services.  
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All clients, volunteers, and visitors to the facility are subject to search. This includes any bags, totes, 

suitcases, or any other item that staff feels could pose a threat to the facility.  

Clients are also subject to searches of shoes, pockets, waistbands, or any other area where a staff 

member has suspicion of contraband or any item or substance that is prohibited at the facility. CRA 

reserves the right to refuse entrance to the facility to any person or person(s) who does not comply with 

these procedures. 

Any client that has not received services for a period of 6 months, will be required to complete a new 

coordinated assessment intake and evaluation. 

Upon entry clients will sign for, and be provided with, a copy of the Shelter Behavioral Policy. These 

policies are also posted in plain sight around the facility. See the Behavioral Policy portion of the SOP for 

further information. 

Pet Policy 

The shelter has a NO PET POLICY. Service animals are permitted on a case by case basis through direct 

approval from the Shelter Manager or DO only. 

Incidents 

For the purposes of this document an incident is an occurrence on site that that causes a disruption or 

disturbance to operations. 

All incidents that occur at the shelter will be documented on the approved Incident Report Form that is 

attached as Attachment 2 in this SOP by the staff member involved. 

Behavioral Policy 

The shelter operates under a Behavioral Policy which must be strictly adhered to. Staff are responsibly 

for maintaining these polices at all times without regard to race, color, religion or belief, national, social 

or ethnic origin, sex (including pregnancy), age, physical, mental or sensory disability, HIV Status, sexual 

orientation, gender identity and/or expression, marital, civil union or domestic partnership status, past 

or present military service, family medical history or genetic information, family or parental status, or 

any other applicable legally protected characteristics. Infractions of this policy are subject to suspension 

(temporary or permanent) from the facility. It is a standard practice that permanent suspension be in 

conjunction with the Key West Police Department’s review and input of the individual situation. 

Behavioral Policy Attachment 3. 

Monitoring 

The shelter premises is under 24-hour video surveillance. This surveillance will be made available, upon 

request, to any agency making a reasonable request. Examples of this would include but not be limited 

to: 

• Local Law Enforcement Authorities 

• The City of Key West 

• Local Judiciary Authorities 

• Legal requests 
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Additionally, the shelter is staffed with shelter monitors, who are tasked with enforcing policy, ensuring 

staff and client safety, and maintaining operational procedures. The facility is staffed 24 hours a day 7 

days a week, effectively providing non-stop video and live personnel monitoring of the facility and 

occupants.  

Facility Maintenance 

CRA operates the property currently located at 5537 College Rd. Key West, FL in a contract agreement 

with the City of Key West.  

The City agrees to be responsible for all costs related to the operations of the KOTS facility, including, but 

not limited to, the sleeping quarters, the office/laundry trailer, utilities, maintenance and repairs of the 

facility and appliances. Minor maintenance should be done by CRA where appropriate and in accordance 

with our polices. CRA will take responsive measures, operating within insurance guidelines, for minor 

maintenance issues.  

The City shall maintain the facilities/shelter in a manner free from defects and/or deterioration which 

could cause accident or injury. 

CRA shall notify the city of all defects and/or deterioration via email or communication preference of the 
City’s designee. An annual site visit and walk through of the facility should be performed with the CRA 
Executive Director, DO, shelter manager, and the Director of Community Services for the City of Key 

West or their designee.  
 

Natural Disasters, Fire, and Disease or Pandemic Outbreaks 

Introduction 

The CRA Emergency Plan addresses issues involved in the coordination of local response and recovery 

activities and defines responsibilities of CRA Management and staff. These are meant to be guidelines 

and not mandatory, realizing that every emergency or natural disaster brings specific and unique 

challenges. The DO in conjunction with the ED has authority to use his/her best judgement based on the 

individual situation and/or emergency. This Plan describes the basic strategies by which CRA conducts 

activities during response and recovery operations. This plan is produced in such a manner as to remain 

consistent with the concept of local City of Key West and Monroe County Emergency Management 

protocols.  

Purpose and scope 

This plan is to govern the operations of CRA before, during, and after an emergency resulting from: 

• Wind and rain from tropical cyclone events  

• Hurricanes 

• Tornadoes 

• Storm surge  

• Floods 
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• Fires 

• Diseases and pandemic outbreaks 

 

It includes requirements to prepare for, respond to, mitigate, and recover from emergencies. The DO or 

designated staff will maintain a log to document CRA activities during any of these events to assist with 

a debriefing process that will be used to help improve upon our response during these events. 

Preparation and prevention 

The DO and/or ED will maintain rosters of the CRA BOD, CRA employees, and other pertinent officials, 

which include emergency contact information. The ED, Secretary, other Directors and the Bookkeeper 

may store as many records as possible electronically and remotely.  

Emergency Procedures and notifications 

The ED shall mobilize this portion of the Operations Plan if there is a significant threat of harm or 

disruption to users and staff of the services provided by CRA. 

The ED shall notify the CRA Chair, the designated staff, the City Manager of the City of Key West, and 

other entities, as appropriate, of any emergency and planned responses.  

The ED or designated staff member shall notify the employees of the nature of the emergency and their 

responsibilities during the emergency. 

Cooperation 

CRA will coordinate its activities with emergency management officials for the City of Key West and 

Monroe County as well as other officials, as appropriate. 

Hurricanes and other storms 

If government officials order an evacuation to emergency shelters, either local or remote, the ED, DO, 

and Shelter Manager shall work with local government designees and ensure that the following actions 

are completed: 

Shelter  

Anticipation of hurricane or natural disaster: 

1. Close as defined or necessary. 

2. Encourage users to visit emergency shelters. 

3. Coordinate with the City Managers Office and City Transportation for evacuation of clients. 

4. Direct staff to secure the mats, trash containers, and outdoor furniture, and any other items 

that could cause a potential hazard during high winds or rainfall.  

5. Remove awnings and secure.  
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6. Move portable equipment, paper records, linens, and supplies to a designated CRA storage 

location to the most complete extent possible. 

7. Request that staff, who are able, to work at the temporary shelters and assist with evacuations.  

8. Remove the computer equipment and disconnect other electrical equipment. 

9. Ensure all doors, cabinets, windows etc. are locked and secured to the greatest extent possible. 

10. Lock the main gate of the facility.  

11. Activate emergency communication procedures for CRA Executive Director, CRA staff, and CRA 

Chair.  

During hurricane or natural disaster: 

In the event Monroe County Emergency Management Department activates in-county shelters, the CRA 

staff will, if possible and allowable, provide assistance to the off-site shelters with monitoring of the 

homeless client population. Employees should expect to work their normally scheduled hours, and other 

hours as needed, at the off-site location. At that time the employees are also under the jurisdiction of 

the governing agency of the in-county shelter, and are there to specifically assist in efforts to shelter 

homeless residents during the emergency response.  

 

Post-hurricane or natural disaster: 

1. The Executive Director and Director of Operations, working with the City Officials, will determine 

if the facility is habitable. If not, CRA will work with the City Manager (or their designee,) and 

Community Services as they repair or replace the facilities. (Electric power, sewage and water 

services are required to re-open.) 

2. Assign employees to perform their monitor job duties as appropriate. If the shelter is open, they 

will resume on site. If the shelter is not able to open, they will remain assigned at off-site 

shelters or locations.  

3. If the shelter cannot re-open, work with City Staff to find agreeable and appropriate alternate 

sites.  

4. Re-open the shelter when the City Manager has given the authority to re-open. 

5. Notify the CRA Chair and other local agencies that the shelter has re-opened. 

6. Proceed with Debriefing process to improve our performance in future emergencies 

Outreach program 

Anticipation of hurricane or Natural Disaster:  

1. Stop normal operations. 

2. Encourage users to seek emergency shelter.  
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3. Case Managers should remove their laptops and any other pertinent property that facilitates 

their job functions from the office and have them with them in case of the need to utilize a 

temporary office space. Remove paper records and supplies to a designated safe place to be 

used for emergency services or as a temporary office.  

4. Request that staff, who are able, to work at the temporary shelters and assist with evacuations. 

During Hurricane or Natural Disaster: 

In the event Monroe County Emergency Management Department activates in-county shelters, the CRA 

staff will, if possible and allowable, provide assistance to the off-site shelters with monitoring of the 

homeless client population. Employees should expect to work their normally scheduled hours, just at 

the off-site location. At that time the employees are also under the jurisdiction of the governing agency 

of the in-county shelter, and are there to specifically assist in efforts to shelter homeless residents 

during the emergency response.  

Post-hurricane:  

1. Retrieve paper records, supplies, and electronic equipment. 

2. Reopen services and notify other local agencies that Case Management offices have re-opened 

Fire 

In case of fire, shelter employees should immediately call 9-1-1. If appropriate, staff should evacuate 

clients from the immediate area and utilize on site fire extinguishers. If reasonable measures to 

extinguish the fire have been futile, staff should immediately evacuate the premises and notify the 

Shelter Manager and Executive Director.  

Diseases or pandemic outbreaks 

If there is a communicable disease or pandemic outbreak, the ED should consult with local health 

officials on the appropriate course of action. The ED may take the following actions among others to 

contain the disease or outbreak.  

1. Consult with the Department of Health, County Emergency Management, and the City Manager. 

2. Based on that consultation, determine the most appropriate course of action for the specific 

threat.  

3. Modify operations in part, or as a whole, to make reasonable accommodations in the safest way 

possible for clients and staff based on the needs of the disease or pandemic outbreak.  

4. Work with best practice standards of care dictated by the Department of Health, the City of Key 

West, Monroe County, and local health providers for the specific threat. 

5. Collaborate and communicate with Shelter Manager regarding implementation of protocols, 

changes to operations, and any suspension or modification of current services.  

6. Communicate with the City of Key West regarding implementation of protocols, changes to 

operations, and any suspension or modification of current services.  
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7. Communicate with the COC and other agencies regarding implementation of protocols, changes 

to operations, and any suspension or modification of current services. 

 

8. Continually monitor the on-site situation in cooperation with the Shelter Manager to ensure 

best practices are being adhered to. 

 

9. Continue these protocols and procedures until the threat has been deemed safe to resume 

previous operations. 

 

The COVID-19 Pandemic of 2020 is an example of this portion of the Operational Plan at work. Through 

collaborative efforts and adherence to these policies, it was proven that agencies can quickly mobilize 

resources and install protocols which can protect not only the clients and staff, but the whole 

community.    

Other natural or man-made emergencies  

In emergencies other than those described in Natural Disasters, Fire, and Disease or Pandemic 

Outbreaks, the ED should consult with the appropriate officials and entities. After consultations, the ED 

may take the appropriate actions to mitigate the effects of the emergency, as long as these actions are 

in agreement and approved by the City Manager.  
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S E R V I C E

S U M M A R Y  :

CRA’s Case Management team, Teresa Wallace, Anne Barnett, and
Mecaya Underwood provided 357 services to 162 Unduplicated
clients in June 2023, both sheltered and unsheltered, with an
average of 2 service per client. CRA Case-Managers had 33 total
new intakes clients. CRA outreach helped 3 clients with
obtaining their birth/marriage certificate and they assisted 23
clients with getting a Florida ID. CRA outreach was also able to
provide 15 new clients with bus passes for the purposes of
making it easier to look for jobs and/or making it easier to get
around due to a disability (acute or chronic). 

CRA also provided 27 clients assistance in
obtaining shoes/clothing that were necessary for
their new jobs or job searches. Also during the
colder months of the year client can get warm
clothing with the vouches. All 27 clients were
given clothing vouchers for them to use at the
Salvation Army. This voucher allows clients to
pick out a few clothing items, a backpack, and
shoes (if they have them). 
In the past, if a client had specific job uniform
requirements. CRA has purchased specific
clothing/shoes that were necessary for
employment, and that they could not otherwise have
gotten with the clothing voucher for Salvation
Army.

FL ID
45

Clothing
41

Local Bus Pass
12

Cell Phone
5

Birth Certificate
2

INTAKES & EXITS

CRA Case-Management



Our 2023 Programs

Thanks to grant funding from the
Monroe County Continuum of Care
(COC), 6 clients were successfully
relocated, during June 2023, to
better situations, where they have
housing, support and/or
employment waiting for them. CRA
Case Managers, collaborate with
client’s friends and family to ensure
the best possible scenario for the
client. This collaboration sometimes
ends up in a relocation. The Florida
Keys are not always the best place
for persons of homelessness to
overcome their own personal
battles, whether it be health issues
or overcoming the high cost of
living in the Florida Keys, our
relocation program helps to
overcome these hurtles. By
providing a one-way bus ticket via
Greyhound, clients can relocate to
a better living situation.

CRA Case Managers know that
helping people maintain good
health improves quality of life for
all. They also understand that one
unanticipated expense on medical
care could put a large stress on
overall progress overcoming
homelessness.  

During June 2023, CRA case
managers helped 2 clients pay for
prescriptions needed to maintain
health to individuals with no other
means of help. 

Additionally, CRA Case Managers
helped 5 clients with referrals
and/or advocacy for Medical
Care during June2023.
 

While access to mobile technology
may not solve homelessness, it
could assist in enabling access to
important services like health care
and employment, and personal or
family networks. Moreover, mobile
connectivity helps for those seeking
housing, meals, public transit, and
legal information and advice.

During June 2023, CRA case
managers helped 10 clients with
applying for a cell phone through
the government program. 



Shelter Operations:

Under the direction of Director of Operations Jay Vanderhoof, during June 
2023 the Keys Overnight Temporary Shelter had a total of 193 

unduplicated clients stay with an average stay of 19 nights per client. 
Shelter Manager, Luis Ortiz, who assists in overseeing the daily operations 

of the shelter, processed 52 New
Enrollments/Intakes. There were 3,607 bed nights during June 2023. Since 

the shelter is 24 hours, Breakfast, Lunch, and Dinner are served daily to 
CRA Shelter residents. Thank you to CRA's hard working staff for all your 

help!



JUNE 2023 REPORT

KEYS OVERNIGHT TEMPORARY SHELTER K.O.T.S.

DONATIONS & VOLUNTEERS

Anyone wishing to donate or volunteer 
can contact Elicia Pintabona at 

305-393-2972 or email
keyscra@keyscra.org

For additional information on CRA and 
it's programs visit www.keyscra.org



CRA is always in need of helping hands! If you’re interested in helping us out,

please visit our website. https://www.keyscra.org/volunteer-2.
Homelessness is a hot topic and largely misunderstood. CRA is always in

need of support. However, if you feel led to support our mission, we want to
meet you there, and provide ways to get you involved! Whether it’s

volunteering at an event, being a part of our community advocacy group, or
a monetary donation, please click below to see how you can be part of the
social justice advocacy that we are providing in our community. Visit us at

our website: www.keyscra.org for more information.
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RICHARD J. VANDERHOOF  

            1264A Matthew Perry Rd.  Key West, FL. 33040 609-374-2075 Jayhoof23@gmail.com  
  
Professional Summary: 
Over 20 years of military experience supervising, training, and motivating team members in the most challenging 
and humbling work environments.  
  
Experience: 
Director of Operations (Cornerstone Resource Alliance), Key West FL July 2022- present 

• Create policy and procedure for shelter operations.  
• Oversee shelter operations to provide service to over 162 homeless individuals to include serving meals, 

assigning beds, enforcing shelter policy, and arranging client case management services.  
• Liaison between Cornerstone Resource Alliance and other agencies who support the mission of helping 

the homeless. 

Homeless Shelter Manager (Cornerstone Resource Alliance), Key West FL January2021- July 2022 
• Manage Shelter Staff consisting of 11 members.  
• Ensure shelter policy and procedures are carried out by staff members.  
• Responsible for safety, cleanliness, and overall wellbeing of staff/clients while on shelter grounds.  

 Assistant Facilities Manager (The Perry Hotel and Stock Island Marina), Key West, FL Aug 2020 -Jan 2021 
• Managed 6 team members and maintained a 43-acre property consisting of 3 bars, a restaurant, two 

swimming pools, 100 room hotel, and an 80-slip marina. 
• Managed the procurement process and preventative maintenance schedule for all property and assets that 

were facility related. 
• Coordinated vendor services for all facility related inspections, state compliance, specialized technical 

repairs, and project estimates. 
 

Senior Manager (U.S Coast Guard Chief Petty Officer), East Moriches, NY   Jun 2014 – Oct 2019  
• Managed 5 team members in the maintenance of 7 Coast Guard facilities in Long Island which consisted 

of 5 buildings and 20 Coast Guard vessels.   
• Maintained and operated a vessel haul out facility and conducted over 50 vessels haul out saving the 

Coast Guard over $200,000 in outsourced contract costs.  
• Scheduled, supervised, and performed maintenance which included the cleanliness and upkeep of a 

historical Coast Guard 5,000+ square foot building, and a 2,000+ square foot office building.   
   

Division Head (U.S Coast Guard Chief Petty Officer), Key West, FL   Jun 2013 - Jun 2014  
• Supervised and conducted the safety and security of 200+ illegal migrates for while planning their 

repatriation process back to their country of origin.  
• Served as the Senior Enlisted member on board Coast Guard Cutter Kodiak Island responsible for the 

wellbeing and morale of the crew.  
• Supervised all custodial duties on board a 110’ Coast Guard vessel and procured new supplies monthly.  

  
Department Supervisor (U.S Coast Guard 1st Class Petty Officer), Key West, FL   Jun 2012 - Jun 2013  

• Certified in Shipboard firefighting, damage control and personnel first aid.  
• Scheduled the shift rotations for the Engineering Department which consisted of 40 members for 4-hour 

shifts over a 24-hr. continuous watch period.  
• Trained 40 team members in Engine room casualty response.  

 
Department Supervisor (U.S Coast Guard 1st Class Petty Officer), Boston, MA   Jun 2009 - Mar 2012  

• Qualified as Maritime Law Enforcement Boarding Officer and lead a four-man team in over 50 law 
enforcement operations in the Caribbean Sea and North Atlantic Ocean.  



• Conducted boarding missions including alien immigration, drug interdiction, and fisheries regulation.  
• Certified as the Ship's Health and wellness coordinator. Responsible for providing information and 

assistance to the crew in nutrition and exercise regiments.  
 
 

Division Head (U.S Coast Guard 1st Class Petty Officer), Cape May, NJ   Aug 2006 - May 2009  
• Certified as a Coast Guard Classroom instructor and instructed Coast Guard recruits in a classroom 

setting. 
• Conducted and responsible for an 8-week recruit boot camp training program for 800+ recruits.   
• Managed 2 individuals in the Company Commander School program and successfully graduated 20+ 

Coast Guard members and certified them as Recruit Company Commanders.  
  
Education and Training                                                                                                      

• Senior Enlisted Service Academy            
• Maritime Law Enforcement Boarding Officer School      
• Instructor Development School   
• Central Connecticut State University  
• American Military University  
• Civil Rights Awareness Training  
• Sexual Harassment Prevention Training  
• Suicide Prevention Training  

                
Volunteer Experience                                                                                             

• Youth Football Coach- Cape May, NJ  
• Special Olympics- Key West, FL  
• Youth Baseball Coach- Bellport, NY  
• Youth Basketball Coach- CYO Mary Immaculate Church Bellport, NY 
 

  



 Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 

Job Title: Director of Operations Job Category: Shelter Administration 

Location: 5537 College Rd. 
Key West, FL 33040 

Travel Required: No 

Salary Range: Salary $65,000.00 - 
$80,000/annually 

Position Type: Full Time 

Will Train Applicant(s): Yes Reports To: Executive Director 

Applications Accepted By: 

EMAIL: 

keyscra@keyscra.org  
Subject Line: Director of Operations Application 

CRA utilizes Indeed and/or Social media platforms to 
advertise job openings. Candidates should follow the 
appropriate avenues to submit their application or 
email their application and resume to the email 
addresses listed in the EMAIL portion of this job 
description. 

Job Description 

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

• Improving the operational processes for the shelter through analysis and collaboration 
• Working with upper management and connected agencies for a long-term operational plan 
• Recommending staffing levels and work plans for the shelter 
• Preparing oversight reports on the activities of the shelter for the Executive Director as requested, as well 

as other materials necessary to obtain/maintain funding and to show compliance with funding agreements. 
• Analyzing the performance of support functions for the shelter and suggests improvement areas. 
• Participating in community education, meetings, and conferences as appropriate. 
• Set guidelines for employee recruitment, evaluations and advancement 

QUALIFICATIONS AND EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS 

High School Diploma or Equivalent. Employee must have a valid driver’s license. 

PREFERRED SKILLS 

Management and or leadership training. Candidate must be highly organized, flexible, and should possess 
supervisory skills and leadership presence. Attention to detail, strong communication and interpersonal skills, 
and an attitude of general responsibility and accountability will make a candidate successful in this role. 

ADDITIONAL NOTES 

This employee works closely with the Executive Director to ensure the highest level of integrity, 
professionalism, and safety regarding the daily operations of the shelter facility. Due to the fact that the shelter 
operates 7 days a week 365 days a year, situations may and will arise in which the D.O. will be called upon to 
report or respond either in person or via phone or text during times when they are not scheduled. 
Communication is a vital component for the successful operation of the facility. 

Last Updated By: E. Pintabona Date: 8.29.2022 
 

mailto:keyscra@keyscra.org
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NEWSLETTER
LOOKING BACK AT 2022

NEW SHELTER TO BE BUILT 

END OF YEAR 2022.Cornerstone Resource Alliance

Plans for building a new shelter, that have 
been in motion for years, have now been 
completely funded. In May 2022, the City 
of Key West was approved $4.3 million in 
funding to be used towards building a 
permanent, storm-resistant, concrete and 
steel facility to replace the old "Temporary" 
shelter. The new shelter will continue to 
operate 24-hours while providing 
wraparound services such as 3 meals a day, 
healthcare, Case Management, and other 
supportive services. 

In July 2022, the City of Key West secured a 
temporary location for KOTS during the 
construction of the new shelter. The 
temporary shelter will be located on the 
Sheriffs property for use during construction. 
Plans for construction of the new shelter are 
moving along smoothly. The construction is 
projected to start towards the end of 2023.

www.keyscra.org



Shelter

What's to come at
KOTS?

WWW.KEYSCRA.ORG

2022 marked CRA's Second 
full year in operation. It has 
been an amazing year. In the 
beginning of 2022, Luis Ortiz, 
was promoted to Shelter 
Manager.
During this time, the Keys 
Overnight Temporary Shelter 
had a total of 709 
unduplicated clients stay at 
KOTS with an average stay of 
136 clients per night, and 
there were 49,756 total bed 
nights in 2022.
Under the direction of Director 
of Operations Jay Vanderhoof, 
the database shows that Shelter 
staff did 168 New Enrollments/
Intakes and Exited 530 clients 
in 2022.

2022 Shelter Operations

Since the shelter is 24 
hours, Breakfast, Lunch, 
and Dinner are served daily 
to CRA Shelter residents at 
the shelter. Thank you to 
CRA's hard working staff for 
all your help! 

"A total of 709 unduplicated clients stay at 
KOTS with an average stay of 136 clients 
per night, and there were 49,756 total bed 
nights in 2022."

2022 CRA

As we enter into 2023, 
the shelter will be 
moving to it's new 
location, further back on 
the Sherriff's property, 
during the constructions 
of the new shelter. We 
will also be hosting AA 
meetings at the shelter. 
These meetings will be 
posted at the shelter 
weekly.  



 RELOCATIONS 2022

OUR STRATEGY

Thanks to grant funding from the Monroe
County Continuum of Care(COC), 39 clients
were successfully relocated, during 2022, to
better situations, where they have housing,
support and/or employment waiting for them.
CRA Case Managers, collaborate with client’s
friends and family to ensure the best possible
scenario for the client. This collaboration
sometimes ends up in are location. The Florida
Keys are not always the best place for persons
of homelessness to overcome their own
personal battles, whether it be health issues or
overcoming the high cost of living in the
Florida Keys, our relocation program helps to
over come these hurtles. By providing a one-
way bus ticket via Greyhound, clients can
relocate to a better living situation.

CRA CASE MANAGEMENT 

CRA's Case Management Team had a busy
2022. During 2022, CRA’s Case
Management team, Teresa Wallace, Anne
Barnett, Nubia Rusko and Mecaya
Underwood provided 4,192 services to 801
Unduplicated clients. CRA Case Managers
provide services to both sheltered and
unsheltered clients, with an average of 5
service per client during 2022. CRA Case
Managers did 445 new client
enrollments/intakes. During 2022, CRA’s
Case Managers helped 70 clients with
obtaining their birth and/or marriage
certificate and they assisted 375 clients
with getting a Florida ID. These type of ID
services help in client’s establishment of
supportive services, jobs and housing.
CRA’s Case Managers were also able to
provide 99 new client’s with a local bus
pass for the purposes of making it easier to
look for jobs and/or making it easier to get
around due to a disability (acute or
chronic). 

Case Managers provided 329 clients
assistance in obtaining shoes/clothing that
were necessary for their new jobs or job
searches. 313 of these clients were given
clothing vouchers for them to use at the
Salvation Army. This voucher allows clients
to pick out a few clothing items, a backpack,
and shoes (if they have them). CRA was able
to help purchase work clothing for 16 clients
that had promise of employment and had no
other means of obtaining these items.

 CLOTHING HELP 2022

 SERVICES 2022



 BIKE PROGRAM 2022

CRA case manager Anne Barnett, with the 
support of local activist Dr. Shirley 
Freeman, initiated “Jump Start” after 
Barnett noticed an abundance of abandoned 
bikes around town. Sensitive to her clients 
need for transportation, Barnett has obtained 
bikes from the Key West Police Department 
in the past, so she put in a call to the KWPD, 
who referred her to Bill Garner, security 
provider at the Key West Bight Marina for 
the City of Key West. With Garner’s help, 
Barnett, along with other CRA staff and 
clients, collected more than 75 abandoned 
bicycles from both Bight area and the Old 
Town Parking Garage, that was just the 
beginning.

During 2022, around179 bikes were 
donated and fixed. CRA was able to provide 
bikes to clients in need of transportation for 
work. Great job Team!

Anyone wishing to donate bikes or bike 
equipment to the program can contact Elicia 
Pintabona at 305-393-2972 or email 
keyscra@keyscra.org.

CRA CASE MANAGEMENT CONTINUES

Through a very generous grant from
the Continuum of Care(COC), CRA’s
Case Managers, Teresa Wallace and
Anne Barnett, launched their first
Housing Rental Assistance and Utility
Assistance Program in 2021. 

Rental and utility assistance sharply
reduces adults experiencing
homelessness, studies find, likely in
part by easing the stress related to the
risk of evictions, homelessness, and
other housing instability. In addition,
it connects these adults to other wrap
around services to aid in the help to
keep these persons housed. 

In 2022, CRA was able to help 72
individuals and/or families with
Rental Assistance at a cost of $93,371. 
CRA assisted 3 individuals and/or
families with Utility assistance at a
cost of $1,708. Additionally, 23
individuals were helped placed into
permanent housing situations through
identifying each individuals
circumstances. 

 RENTAL  AND UTILITY
ASSISTANCE 2022



DONATIONS AND VOLUNTEERS

DONATIONS 

CRA is always in need of
Donations! If you're
interested in donating to our
organization, please visit
our website.

Homelessness is a hot topic
and largely misunderstood.
CRA is always in need of
support. However, if you feel
led to support our mission, we
want to meet you there, and
provide ways to get you
involved! Whether it's
volunteering at an event,
being a part of our
community advocacy group,
or a monetary donation, see
how you can be part of the
social justice advocacy that
we are providing in our
community. 

Visit us at our website:
www.keyscra.org for more
information. Or call 305-393-
2972 or email at
keyscra@keyscra.org

VOLUNTEERS

CRA is a non-profit
committed to serving the
underserved. We have a 120
bed non-fee based shelter
that is open 24 hours a day
and 7 days a week, serving
3meals a day. CRA is
always in need of helping
hands! If you’re interested
in helping  please visit our
website.
https://www.keyscra.org/vol
unteer-2

.

www.keyscra.org
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 

include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 's internal control. Accordingly, 

no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 

financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 

that raise substantial doubt about Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 's ability to continue as a 

going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to. communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we iden ·ed during the audit. 

C. 

mer & Company, LLC 
Fort Myers, Florida 
February 14, 2023 

2 









Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Vear Ended June 30, 2022 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Cash collected from grants 

Cash collected from contributions 

Cash received from interest income 

Cash received from other income 

Cash paid for programs and support 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities 

Change in net assets 

Adjustments: 

Depreciation 

(lncrease)/decrease in assets: 

Grants receivable 

lncrease/(decrease) in liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,032,648 

7,555 

582 

343 

{992,572) 

48,556 

(56,042) 

(56,042) 

(7,486) 

82,993 

75,507 

106,244 

4,987 

(73,107) 

8,212 

2,220 

48,556 







Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Revenue recognition (continued) 

Contributions 

Revenue from contributions is recognized at the time the support or contribution is made. 

Grant and contract income 

Revenues from grants and contracts are recognized pro-ratably over the grant or contract 
period as reimbursements are requested and barriers are met. 

10. Concentrations 

The Organization receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue primarily from local 
grants. If a significant reduction in the level of funding were to occur, it could have an adverse 

effect on the Organization's programs. 

11. Contributions 

The Organization accounts for its contributions in accordance with the "Not-For-Profit Entities" 
topic of the FASB ASC. In accordance with this topic, contributions received are recorded as net 
assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions depending on the existence 
and/or nature of any donor restrictions. All donor restricted contributions are reported as 

increases in net assets with donor restrictions depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), donor restricted support is reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions 
and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

12. Donated services 

The Organization does not have a clearly measurable basis to value contributed and donated 
services. Any value of such services is not quantified and as such, is not reflected in the 
accompanying financial statements. The Organization receives donated services and goods, and a 

number of volunteers, including the Board of Directors, who have donated significant amounts of 

their time and expertise to the Organization. 

13. Functional expenses 

The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various program and 
supporting services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program service are allocated 

directly according to their natural expenditure classification. Other expenses common to several 
functions are allocated by various statistical basis. 

14. Advertising and marketing 

Advertising and marketing costs are charged to operations in the period in which the 
advertisement or marketing campaign occurs. Advertising and marketing costs for the year ended 
June 30, 2022 were $2,810. 

9 



Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

15. Income taxes 

The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the Organization is exempt from federal 
income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization is a not-for­
profit Florida corporation and therefore is not subject to state income taxes. The Internal Revenue 
Code provides for taxation of unrelated business income under certain circumstances. The 
Organization reports no unrelated business taxable income; however, such status is subject to 

final determination upon examination of the related tax returns by the appropriate taxing 
authorities. 

The Organization's tax filings are subject to audit by various taxing authorities. Certain income tax 
returns filed by the Organization remain open to examination by these government agencies. The 

Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued guidance on accounting for uncertainty in 
income taxes and the Organization adopted this guidance. The Organization has evaluated its tax 
positions and any estimates utilized in its tax returns, and concluded that the Organization has 
taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the financial statements to comply 
with the provisions of this guidance. Interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions 
will be recognized in income tax expense, if required. 

16. Management estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Note B - Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 

The Organization's financial assets available within one year of the balance sheet date for general 
expenditures were as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Grants receivable 

Beneficial interest in assets held by others 

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditures 
within one year 

10 

$ 

$ 

75,507 

104,167 

10,255 

189,929 



Note C - Grants Receivable 

Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Grants receivable consisted of the following as of June 30, 2022: 

ESG 

Challenge Grant 

Other 

Note D - Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Others 

$ 

$ 

101,409 

2,685 

73 

104,167 

The Community Foundation of the Florida Keys maintains an endowment fund in the name of the 
Organization. The endowment fund is the sole property of the Community Foundation of the 
Florida Keys, which has ultimate control and authority over all of the property in the fund. During 

the year ended June 30, 2022, additions, accumulated interest, market fluctuations, and fees have 
resulted in net changes totaling $0. As of June 30, 2022, the balance of the fund was $10,255. 

Note E - Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of June 30, 2022: 

Computers 

Furniture 

Accumulated depreciation 

Property and equipment, net 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $4,987. 

Note F - Fair Value Measurements 

$ 

$ 

3,355 

58,233 

61,588 

(5,595} 

55,993 

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs 
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to 

unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three 
levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that the Organization has the ability to access. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

*Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets. 
*Quoted pries for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets. 
*Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liability. 
*Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 

11 



Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Note F - Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
correlation or other means. 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurements. Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets at 
fair value as of June 30, 2022. The Organization had no financial liabilities as of June 30, 2022. 

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2022 
(Level 1) (Level 2) · (Level 3) Total 

Beneficial interest in assets held by others $ - $ - $ 10,255 $ 10,255 

The fair value of the beneficial interest in assets held by others was not readily determinable 
through an outside source independent of the Organization. The fair value is based on amounts 
reported to the Organization by the community foundation. 

The following represents a fair value roll forward of the beneficial interest in assets held by others 
measured at Level 3 for the year ended June 30, 2022: 

For the year ended June 30, 2022: 

Balance as of July 1, 2021 $ 10,255 

Balance as of June 30, 2022: $ 10,255 

Note G -Net Assets 

Net assets consisted of the following as of June 30, 2022: 

Without donor restrictions: $ 229,977 

With donor restrictions $ 

12 



Cornerstone Resource Alliance, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Note H - Net Assets Released From Donor Restrictions 

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted 
purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by donors. 

Net assets released from donor restrictions during the year ended June 30, 2022 were: 

Expenditure for specific purpose accomplished: 

Grants and contracts 

Total released from restrictions: 

Note I - Economic Dependence 

$ 1,105,755 

$ 1,105,755 

A substantial part of the Organization's operations is dependent upon the receipt of support from 
grantor agencies. Loss of these funds and/or large decreases in this type of funding would have a 
material effect on the Organization and a negative impact on overall operations. For the year 
ended June 30, 2022, 99% of total support and revenue is attributable to funds received from 
local grantor agencies. 

Note J - Leases 

The Organization entered into an agreement to lease office space on a year-to-year basis until the 
City of Key West finishes the construction of the new shelter. 

Rental expense incurred under the agreement for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $6,000. 

Note K - Subsequent Events 

Management has assessed subsequent events through February 14, 2023, the date on which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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